
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCED PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
1. BIKE HANGARS INSTALLATION PROCESS  (Pages 1 - 22) 
 
2. AWARD OF CHILDREN SERVICES SYSTEM (HOSTED) CONTRACT  

(Pages 23 - 34) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

PL 21/077 P 

 

London Borough of Enfield 
 

Portfolio Report  
  
Report of: Richard Eason, Healthy Streets Programme Director  
 
 

 
Subject:        Bike Hangars Installation Process 
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Ian Barnes 
 
Director: Doug Wilkinson  
 
Wards:  All 
 
Key Decision: Non KD          
 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. This report seeks approval for a bikehangar installation process as part of the 

Healthy Streets Programme. The provision of cycle parking in residential 
areas form part of the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy to allow 
London’s boroughs to make it easier and safer for people to cycle. 
 

 
Proposal(s) 
 
2. This report proposes: 

 

 That the bikehangar implementation process at Annex 1 is approved as 
the Healthy Streets Programme approach for the delivery of secure cycle 
parking units on the highway in residential locations.  
 

 That subject to following the relevant approved process, the approval of 
funding allocations and the placement of individual bikehangars is 
delegated to the Director of Environment & Operational Services. 

 
 
Reason for Proposal(s) 
 
3. Lack of secure cycle parking is a major barrier to people cycling, especially 

the lack of safe storage space at home1. Much of the borough's housing stock 
does not provide enough space for people to store bikes inside, particularly 
when residential addresses are shared or converted into flats. 
 

                                                 
1
 https://content.tfl.gov.uk/cycle-parking-implementation-plan.pdf  

Page 1 Agenda Item 1

https://content.tfl.gov.uk/cycle-parking-implementation-plan.pdf


 

PL 21/077 P 

4. Circa 17% of cyclists in London have suffered bike theft in the last three 
years, of these 24% no longer cycle at all and 66% have reduced their 
levels2. Putting in place an agreed process for implementation and delegated 
authority to the Director of Environment & Operational Services will enable a 
more efficient method of delivery and installation.  

 
 

Relevance to the Council’s Plan 
 
5. Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods: The scheme directly 

supports the Council’s commitment to reduce congestion, improve air quality, 

reducing vehicle dominance and road danger. 

 
6. Safe, healthy and confident communities: The scheme also helps to deliver 

the Council commitment to improve health by promoting active travel. This is 
particularly relevant at a time where Covid-19 measures may continue affect 
the willingness of people to use public transport.  
 

7. An economy that works for everyone: Wider investment in the walking & 
cycling network forms part of the Council’s strategy to support our high streets 
and town centres by providing safe and easy access to local shops and 
services. 
 

 
Background 
 
8. A mix of cycle parking and storage solutions have been installed across the 

Borough.  
 

9. The secure bikehangar is an on-street parking solution for cyclists to provide 
convenient access close to homes. Using only 2.5 metres of carriageway 
(less than a car parking space), the bikehangar houses 6 bikes within a 
lockable unit. They are typically placed to sit seamlessly within any row of 
parked cars. There is a growing demand from residents within the borough, 
providing access to secure facilities where they need them most, conveniently 
located on their doorstep.  

 
10. Residents of Enfield can register their interest in having a bikehangar near 

their home by registering on the Council website3. These requests will inform 
the placement of the majority of the bikehangars. However, a smaller 
percentage will be strategically placed in other areas to align with other 
infrastructure projects. 

 
11. The bikehangar programme contributes towards reducing crime, by removing 

exposed bikes which previously might have been vulnerable to theft. 
 
 
 

                                                 
2 https://trl.co.uk/sites/default/files/TRL284.pdf 

 
3
 https://letstalk.enfield.gov.uk/cycleparking  

Page 2

https://trl.co.uk/sites/default/files/TRL284.pdf
https://letstalk.enfield.gov.uk/cycleparking


 

PL 21/077 P 

 
 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 
12. The basis for the bikehangar scheme is to provide a service to those 

who have requested it, making cycle parking as easy as car parking. 
This scheme allows reallocation of a small amount of road space to the 
33% of residents who do not own a car4 and who could, along with 
other residents who own a car, choose to cycle more of their shorter 
journeys. 
 

13. Bikehangars are minor highway intervention, seeking to bring more 
balance to the amount of public highway that is allocated to the 
storage/parking of private cycles, when compared to the space 
allocated to the storage/ parking of private motor vehicles. 

 
14. It is not considered proportionate for the installation of each individual 

bikehangar to receive Cabinet Member approval. However, it is 
considered necessary for a consistent approach to delivery to be 
followed. With Cabinet Member approval of the overall approach and 
delegation in place to the director, Officers will be able to respond to 
residents' requests in a more timely way. 

 
15. Funding for the installation of bikehangars will typically originate from, 

but not limited to, external grants.  
 

16. Annex 1 sets out in detail the process to be followed for the approval 
and installation of bikehangars. Key steps in this process include: 

 

 Step 1: Based on the residents’ registration of interest in bikehangars, a 
list of proposed sites for each batch is identified and the Cabinet Member 
is briefed on the proposed locations. General principles of the selection of 
sites are outlined below: 

 

 Prioritise streets without facilities.  

 Focus on areas with high density housing populations   

 Ensure the distribution of facilities is fair and equitable across all 
wards as far as practical based on demand  

 Review areas with the highest demand 

 

 Step 2: Selected streets are subject to detailed site assessment for 
placement of bikehangars according to a number of criteria which are 
outlined in Annex1. 

 

 Step 3: Ward Councillors are informed about the bikehangar proposal. 
After Ward Councillors' notification, residents in the direct area of the 
proposal are notified.   

 

                                                 
4
 https://new.enfield.gov.uk/healthandwellbeing/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/Enfield-People.pdf 

Page 3



 

PL 21/077 P 

 Step 5: Application for a traffic order for the selected streets to make the 
installation effective.  

 

 Step 6: Details of site assessment, public notification and traffic order 
process results are included in Record of Decision to be reviewed and 
approved by Director of Environment & Operational Services. 

 

 Step 7: After approval, where applicable, parking suspensions are 
arranged according to installation date. 

 

 Step 8: Implementation is confirmed with the supplier and carried out. 
 

 Step 9: Spaces in bikehangars are allocated to the people who made the 
request for cycle parking these are based on a first come first serve 
approach. 
 

 Step 10: The bikehangars are handed over to Parking Services for ongoing 
management.  

 
Safeguarding Implications 
 
17. None identified 
 
Public Health Implications 
 
18. Creating an environment where people actively choose to walk and cycle as 

part of everyday life can have a significant impact on public health and has 
the potential to reduce health inequalities. It is an essential component of a 
strategic approach to increasing physical activity and may be more cost-
effective than other initiatives that promote exercise, sport and active leisure 
pursuits. 
 

19. Transport is one of the fundamental determinants of health; it may be health-
damaging or health promoting. The Secure cycle parking programme will 
contribute towards making transport in Enfield much more health-promoting 
by increasing physical activity and reducing the health costs of motorised 
transport.  

 
20. Cycle hangers will help increase physical activity by making this part of 

everyday life e.g., walking or cycling as a normal, everyday transport mode. 
Such is the effect of physical activity upon health that a modal shift to levels of 
active transport would save the NHS billions per year. This would be achieved 
through savings in treating Type 2 diabetes, heart disease, stroke, some 
cancers, musculo-skeletal disease, and dementia. 

 
21. Achieving a modal shift towards active travel will also reduce the indirect 

damaging effects of motorised transport on health, such as: air pollution, 
community segregation and noise.  
 

22. Cycling has increased worldwide following the Covid-19 pandemic as it has 
been seen as an alternative to crowded public transport where private motor 

Page 4



 

PL 21/077 P 

car journeys are not possible or desirable. Cycling provision will reduce the 
return to the private car and prevent deterioration in air quality. 

 

23. Creating an environment that enables more walking and cycling would also 
be likely to positively impact upon health inequalities as income or wealth 
would become a less significant factor in a person’s ability to travel within the 
borough e.g., access to employment, healthcare, social networks etc. 

 

24. Reducing obesity is a priority for Enfield, as outlined in the Borough’s Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy. 61.4% of adults are classified as overweight or 
obese. Data for academic years 2014/15 to 2016/17 shows that the average 
prevalence of excess weight in year 6 pupils is 41.5%. This is higher than 
London (37.9%) and England (33.87%) averages. 
  

25. More walking and cycling also has the potential to achieve related policy 
objectives: 

 Supports local businesses and promotes vibrant town centres 

 Provides a high-quality, appealing public realm 

 Reduces road danger and noise 

 Increases the number of people of all ages out on the streets, making 
public spaces seem more welcoming and providing opportunities for 
social interaction and children’s play 

 Provides an opportunity for everyone, including people with impairments, 
to exercise and enjoy the outdoor environment. 

 
 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
 
26. Local authorities have a responsibility to meet the Public Sector Duty of the 

Equality Act 2010. The Act gives people the right not to be treated less 
favourably because of any of the protected characteristics. We need to 
consider the needs of these diverse groups when designing and changing 
services or budgets so that our decisions do not unduly or disproportionately 
affect access by some groups more than others. The Public Sector Duty Act 
2010 requires Local Authorities, in the performance of their functions, to: 

 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other prohibited 

conduct 

 Advance equality of opportunity 

 Foster good relations 

 

27. In recommending this proposal we have considered the needs of all highway 

users including those from the protected characteristic groups. 

Age Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Disability Neutral impact – bikehangars can be 
adapted for non traditional cycles which may 
be used as a mobility aid, on request of 
residents.  

Page 5



 

PL 21/077 P 

 
 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
 
28. The table below provides an overview of environmental and climate change 

considerations. 
 

Consideration Impact of Proposals 

Energy 
consumption in 
delivering service 

Neutral 
 
There are no changes proposed to the current service 
delivery arrangements. 

Measures to 
reduce carbon 
emissions 

Positive 
 
Transport generates a significant amount of 
greenhouse gas emissions (33% of UK CO2 
emissions in 20185). The proposals will enable: 

 Increased levels of active travel. 

 Reduced private vehicle trips. 
 

Measures to 
reduce carbon 
emissions in 
delivery 

Negative 
 
The impact of distribution of the units could be 
improved by long term delivery strategy to decrease 

                                                 
5
 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/790626/2

018-provisional-emissions-statistics-report.pdf 

Gender reassignment Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Marriage or civil partnership Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Pregnancy and maternity Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Race Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Religion or belief Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Sex Neutral impact - No specific impacts 
identified. 

Social economic Slight positive impact – Any impact on social 
economic inequality is likely to be low, as 
those on low incomes are less likely to own 
cars, meaning they are more likely to walk 
or cycle and these projects promote active 
health and create a safer environment for 
this to occur. 

  

Page 6



 

PL 21/077 P 

the level of carbon emission agreed with the supplier.  

Environmental 
management 

Neutral 
 
The main impact will be in the implementation of the 
project and the resultant embedded carbon.  
  
However, the main offset will be a forecast reduction 
in the use of private vehicles as noted above. 

Climate change 
mitigation 

Neutral 
 
The proposal will not require additional mitigation in 
terms of carbon emissions and related impacts on the 
natural environment. 

 
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
36. Should this bikehangar installation process and delegated authority not be 

approved, the Council will be unable to be respond in an agile and 
responsive way to resident’s requests. If residents have to wait for long 
periods of time between requests and delivery there could be a missed 
opportunity for enabling mode shift. There will be reduced efficiencies in 
project deliver, potentially enabling less assets to be delivered with external 
funding secured, providing less overall value for money.  

 
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 
be taken to manage these risks 
 
37. The Cabinet Member will have reduced formal sign off on the placement of 

individual bikehangars. However, all proposed locations will be briefed to the 
Cabinet Member once the site is initially identified as a first step, prior to 
further progression.  

 
 
Financial Implications 
 
38. Bikehangars will typically be funded by Transport for London but are not limited to 

this funding, other sources may also be considered as appropriate. Funding from 
TfL is governed through the TfL Borough Portal which means that no costs will 
fall on the Council. The release of funds by TfL is based on a process that 
records the progress of the works against approved spending profiles. TfL makes 
payments against certified claims as soon as costs are incurred, ensuring the 
Council benefits from prompt reimbursement. 

 
 

Legal Implications 
  

Page 7



 

PL 21/077 P 

39. The Council has the power under s63 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 to provide parking places for securing bicycles without prior notification 
or the need for a traffic order6. 

 
40. The recommendation set out in this report are within the Council’s powers 

and duties. 
 
Workforce Implications 
 
41. None identified 
 
 
Property Implications 
 
42. The bikehangars are typically placed on land designated as public highway in 

line with legislation.  However, placement will also take place on Council 
owned land and any other land where appropriate agreements are reached. 
 

43. As all the bikehangars are being placed on land designated as Public 
Highway, no corporate property implications are anticipated to arise. 

 
44. Following implementation, the ownership of bikehangars as a Council asset 

will pass to Parking Services. They will manage the subscription income for 
the service which will provide revenue to offset future maintenance costs. 

 
Other Implications 
 
45. None identified. 
 
 
Options Considered 
 
46. The following alternative option has been considered: 

 

Option Comment 

Do not implement 
bikehangars. 
 

This is not recommended as this project provides a 
key contribution to the wider Borough strategy of 
delivering climate change and health & wellbeing 
objectives, whilst increasing access to secure cycle 
parking and encourage more people to cycle. 

Produce a Cabinet Member 
report for specific 
bikehangar installations. 

This process is not considered to be an efficient way 
of responding to residents' requests for what are 
minor interventions.  

 
Conclusions 
 
47. The proposal provide clarity on a process to be followed for the 

implementation of bikehangars in the Borough. This process involves a 

                                                 
6
 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1984/27/section/63 

Page 8



 

PL 21/077 P 

series of steps that clarify the involvement of the Cabinet Member, Ward 
Cllrs and residents. This approach will ensure that the Council, subject to 
funding, will be able to respond to resident requests for cycle parking in a 
way that is timely, efficient and offers best value for money. Approval of the 
process with delegation to the director supports the Councils corporate 
objectives for tackling climate change, building healthier streets and 
regenerating the Borough. It is recommended that the Cabinet Member 
approves the content of this report and approves the adoption of a 
bikehangars process as specified at Annex 1.  

 

Report Author:  Gulcan Orak 
 Cycling Project Officer 
 gulcan.orak@enfield.gov.uk 
 0208 0789080 
 
Date of report:  14/12/2022 
 
 
Annex 1 - Bikehangar Installation Process 
  
 
ANNEX 1: Bikehangars Installation Process 

1. BACKGROUND 

Insufficient provision of safe bicycle parking is one of the key factors affecting 

cycling uptake. In addition, those with cycles can end up storing them in spaces 

not specifically designated for this purpose, such as balconies and buildings’ 

communal areas7. 

To meet the need for cycle parking and enable cycling growth, more parking 

space is needed. Sufficient cycle parking is essential to enable people to make 

more trips by cycle8. Safe cycle parking provision needs to consider the end to 

end user journey. It should be available at destinations (such as town centres / 

transport hubs) but also needs to be provided close to resident’s homes. By 

providing people with confidence that their cycle will be safe at various locations, 

they are more likely to make the choice to both own a cycle and use it more.  

2. CYCLE PARKING IN ENFIELD 

Enfield Council recognises that the borough has a relatively low cycle mode 

share and that there are real opportunities to increase the number of people 

cycling with great benefits to be gained. 

Enfield Council is committed to increasing the level of sustainable and active 

travel as set out in the Enfield Healthy Streets Framework9. The provision of 

bikehangars links to a series of strategies as outlined below:  

                                                 
7
 https://www.centreforlondon.org/publication/parking-kerbside-management/ 

 
8
 http://content.tfl.gov.uk/cycle-parking-implementation-plan.pdf 

9
 

https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/documents/s88182/EnfieldHealthyStreetsCabinetReportFinal020621.pdf 

Page 9

mailto:gulcan.orak@enfield.gov.uk
https://www.centreforlondon.org/publication/parking-kerbside-management/
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/cycle-parking-implementation-plan.pdf


 

PL 21/077 P 

Report Name  The relevance  

Mayor’s Transport Strategy 

(MTS) 2018 

Proposal 1c: The Mayor, through TfL and the 

boroughs, will provide more secure, accessible 

cycle parking, particularly in residential areas, 

town centres, public transport interchanges and 

at key destinations. 

Enfield Transport Strategy 

2019-2041 

Delivering objective 1: Deliver Cycle Enfield and 

supporting measures which 

encourage more cycling and walking in the 

borough. 

o Additional cycle parking and seating 

o Improve quality and quantity of cycle 

parking at public transport interchanges 

and key local destinations 

 

Delivering objective 2: Promote safe, active and 

sustainable transport to and from schools. 

o Additional cycle parking in schools 

 

Delivering objective 4: Manage growing demand 

for on-street parking  

o Ensure new developments contain high 

levels of access to cycle parking and 

storage  

o Ensure developments contribute as 

appropriate to on-street cycle parking in 

town centres and other places of high 

demand. 

Enfield Climate Action Plan 

2020 

There will be more high-quality cycling and 

walking routes and facilities, such as cycle 

parking, across the borough, encouraging 

everyone to enjoy active travel. 

 

 

Bikehangars 

Bikehangar offers a secure solution to long-term cycle parking and an effective 
way to protect bikes from inclement weather conditions, vandalism and theft. It 
stores six bikes within approximately half the space of a car parking bay, making 
it ideal for areas where outdoor cycle storage space is necessary.  

 

Page 10



 

PL 21/077 P 

  

 

Dimension: 

 Length: 2550mm 

 Height: 1365mm 

 Depth: 2030mm 
 

3. IMPLEMENTATION 

Cycle parking that the Council installs should be:  

 Fit-for-purpose – meeting identified current and future demand, with an 
appropriate balance of short stay (e.g. cycle stands in town centres for a 
shopping trip) and longer-stay provision (e.g. at transport hub for all day 
parking or residential provision for overnight). Facilities should accommodate 
all types of cycle.  

 Secure – stands in visible, well-lit places that have high levels of natural 
surveillance.  

 Well-located – convenient, accessible, as close as possible to the 
destination, and preferably sheltered. 

Cycle parking delivered by Enfield Council should generally:  

 Apply the standards identified in London Design Cycle Standards and Cycle 
Parking Implementation Plan  

 Ensure that development and transport plans include proposals for 
addressing existing gaps in provision 

3.1. Delivery Methodology 

There is a clear case for providing cycle parking where there is existing evidence 

of use but simply serving existing demand is unlikely to accommodate the 

projected growth in cycle use. Setting targets for cycle parking in locations where 

use is currently low, but where an authority may wish to promote cycling, will 

Page 11



 

PL 21/077 P 

depend on the potential to attract use and to provide facilities that meet the 

standards10. 

The right amount of cycle parking for a site or area would be at a level that:  

 Meets existing baseline demand  

 Meets the potential demand generated by the existing and proposed cycle 

network in the area  

 Ensures there is further allowance for spare capacity (ideally, at least 20 per 

cent) 

Alongside this expansion of the cycle network, we will need to provide sufficient 

cycle parking on new cycle routes as part of a comprehensive approach to 

encouraging mode shift. 

Delivery phases 

The target is that the Council will deliver 3 batches of bike hangars within a 

Financial Year. The number of batches that are delivered and the number of 

hangars within each batch is subject to the total amount of funding received. 

  

In order to effectively deliver bikehangars, the Council will follow a series of 

steps. These steps are summarised in the table and then outlined further below. 

The months shown are indicative of the process and may vary, depending on the 

time of year that funding is secured (this is not always at the start of a new FY). 

 

 

Activity Period Steps for Delivery  

BATCH 1 

April  

(Step 1) Location Selection 
(Step2) Site Assessment 
(Step 3) Ward Cllrs/Public Notification 

May 

(Step 4) Contact Supplier-  

(Step 5) Traffic Order Application 

June 

(Step 5) Traffic Order Process 

(Step 6) Approval of Decision 

July 

(Step 7) Parking Suspension 
(Step 8) Installation  

(Step 9) Space Allocation 

(Step10) Handover  

BATCH 2 

August (Step 1) Location Selection 

                                                 
10

 http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lcds-chapter8-cycleparking.pdf 
 
 

Page 12

http://content.tfl.gov.uk/lcds-chapter8-cycleparking.pdf


 

PL 21/077 P 

(Step2) Site Assessment 
(Step 3) Ward Cllrs /Public Notification 

September 
(Step 4) Contact Supplier  
(Step 5) Traffic Order Application 

October 
(Step 5) Traffic Order Process 
(Step 6) Approval of Decision 

November 

(Step 7) Parking Suspension 
(Step 8) Installation  
(Step 9) Space Allocation 
(Step10) Handover 

BATCH 3 

December 

(Step 1) Location Selection 
(Step2) Site Assessment 
(Step 3) Ward Cllrs/ Public Notification 

January 

(Step 4) Contact Supplier  
(Step 5) Traffic Order Application 

February 

(Step 5) Traffic Order Process 
(Step 6) Approval of Decision 

March 

(Step 7) Parking Suspension 
(Step 8) Installation  
(Step 9) Space Allocation 
(Step10) Handover 

 

Step 1 - Location Selection  

Requests for bike hangars are registered through the Council’s website. On 

receipt, Officers collate and map the request location. The Cabinet Member is 

then briefed on the proposed locations. Sites are then prioritised by considering 

the following aspects: 

 

 Prioritise streets without facilities.  

 Focus on areas with high density housing populations   

 Ensure the distribution of facilities is fair and equitable across all wards as far 

as practical based on demand  

 Review areas with the highest demand 

Once this initial assessment is completed, taking into account the level of funding 

available for each batch, bikehangars sites will be finalised. A list will be 

produced, with an accompanying map on a GIS layer and the Cabinet Member 

briefed on the proposals.  

Step 2 – Site assessment and design  

Page 13

https://letstalk.enfield.gov.uk/cycleparking


 

PL 21/077 P 

Once the next batch list has been identified, each of those sites will be subject to 

a more detailed assessment and then subsequent design. Site assessments will 

give careful consideration to: 

 Avoid any impact on the emergency services vehicle access routes 

 Avoid obstructions, for example, trees, lamp columns etc. If there is a tree 

nearby, ensure to keep at least 1 m from the roots of tree 

 Avoid green space as a possible installation site. 

 Avoid place unit next to disabled bay. A minimum of 6m should be left for a 

stand car space. Ensuring that the actual bay is of current legal standards.  

 Ensure that drainage covers are not blocked or adversely affected  

 Select locations that are clearly visible and well overlooked with high levels of 

natural surveillance, and CCTV  

 Ensure the security to accessing the unit and doors opening way, well-lit 

areas, overlooked by nearby windows 

 Prioritise placement on carriageway  

 If placed on a footway area, ensure a minimum of 1.5m space is maintained 

for pedestrians and access for wheelchair users / buggies.  

 Ensure the location is in close proximity to the demand.  

 Ensure that placement does not hinder access to houses 

 Ensure the location is not in the intersection where impacts the drivers’ vision 

The following examples help illustrate these principles: 

 

   

Figure 1: Placing bikehangar at intersection- the drawing illustrates the situation that 
make longer section of yellow line can be perceived as redundant. / Placing bikehangar 

Page 14



 

PL 21/077 P 

at intersection- the drawing shows the danger for the outbound left lane, the vision of 
driver who is trying to turn left hindered, which cause danger for pedestrian. 
 

When site visit is conducted by considering the criteria above, officers mark out 

the proposal on street and photograph the location for council records and 

complete draft drawing. 

It is recommended that the identified location on street whether in uncontrolled 

parking zone or controlled parking zone should be shared with Parking Services 

and Traffic and Transportation team to consult and notify them to maintain 

compliances.  

If the selected location is in the conservation zone, the colleagues in Heritage 

and Conservation team should be consulted.  

The output of the site assessment and design phase is an AutoCAD drawing for 

each proposed location and site photographs.  

 

 

Step 3 - Notification Period  

In accordance with the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, section 63, the Council 

have the appropriate powers to place cycle parking on the public highway. 

Section 63 of the 1984 Act states that - 

"the powers of any authority under this Act to provide parking places shall extend 

to providing, in roads or elsewhere, stands and racks for bicycles".  

There is no legal requirement to consult prior to the installation of bikehangars 

(leaving aside the consultation required if a traffic management order is needed 

to amend existing parking bays etc.). Given the small-scale nature of the 

proposal, that we are responding to resident demand and that encouraging active 

travel is part of an agreed council approach11, an extensive informal consultation 

process is not required either.  

However, Enfield Council will notify residents in the immediate area of the 

proposed bikehangar by letter, setting out details of the proposal and providing 

an opportunity to ask questions.  

Using the output from step 2, the following communication are carried out:  

 A briefing session is held with relevant Ward Councillors about the proposal 
and proposed locations of bikehangars. 

 Draft the notification letter (template can be found here) of proposals including 
the drawing and related information such as the importance of the bikehangar, 
the number of requests registered from the street, the price per space, how 
they can request a space. 

                                                 
11

 https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/roads-and-transport/enfield-transport-plan-2019-2041-roads.pdf 

Page 15

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/42F433BF-DA0F-43D7-BBF8-45D3B3E9D5E9?tenantId=cc18b91d-1bb2-4d9b-ac76-7a4447488d49&fileType=doc&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement%2FShared%20Documents%2FCycle%20Parking%2F0200%20Project%20Management%2FDelivery%2FLetters%2FExample%20Template-notificationletter-2021.doc&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:20881767278e494eb060deae38a96056@thread.skype&groupId=34902876-f83e-4dda-a391-4e4925064ce6


 

PL 21/077 P 

 Notify Ward members about letter and letter distribution prior to proceeding to 
public notification.  

 Arrange the letter distribution. 

 Send the letters to the print office with the instruction of doubled sided and 
folded to be collected by the distribution company 

 The notification letters should be sent to the public at least 6 weeks before the 
installation. 

 Distribute the notification letters to the immediate area surrounding the 
proposal. Typically, this is approximately a radius of 100m around the location 
or approximately 30 - 40 houses.  

 A second letter (template can be found here) to notify of the installation and 
parking suspension must be sent before at least 1 week of the installation.   

The output of this step is recoded showing the selected street for the delivery and 
information of notification periods including any comments received from public 
and responses from Council. Typically, responses to any concerns raised are 
reinforcing the Council policy of encouraging more active travel. However, it 
could be that a previously unconsidered issue is raised at this stage, which may 
impact the decision to implement a bikehangar at a particular location.  

 

 

Step 4 - Contact Supplier  

With the output of the step 3, it is recommend contacting supplier to secure 
window for the installation prior to 2 months of the planned installation date.  
Preparing the units and schedule installation date might take up to 2 months to 
arrange depend on the supplier availability. Also, traffic order process (6 weeks) 
should take into consideration when schedule the installation.  

The output of step 4 is an agreement with supplier for the installation date. 

 

 

Step 5 - Apply for Traffic Order 

Traffic Order for streets without restrictions 

If the selected location is in a no restriction area, there is a risk involved in the 
selected spot is occupied in the installation day which causes disruption and 
delay in the delivery plan. Therefore, it is recommended to apply for temporary 
traffic order in order to achieve installation according to the delivery plan. 

 Fill the form for Temporary Traffic Order (the form can be obtained from 
Street Works team) 

 Submit the form to NRSWA at least 6 weeks prior to the installation date.  

 Share all drawings and information with Traffic officer 

Page 16

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/3CA66D50-FC07-4CD6-8ACA-2E844567D155?tenantId=cc18b91d-1bb2-4d9b-ac76-7a4447488d49&fileType=docx&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement%2FShared%20Documents%2FCycle%20Parking%2F0200%20Project%20Management%2FDelivery%2FLetters%2FTemplate_Parking%20suspension%20Letter%20for%20residents.docx&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:20881767278e494eb060deae38a96056@thread.skype&groupId=34902876-f83e-4dda-a391-4e4925064ce6


 

PL 21/077 P 

 Traffic officer will arrange the publication on gazette in 4 weeks as a first 
notice of temporary traffic order 

 After 2 weeks of first notice, the notice of making is published, and signs 
are erected on the road accordingly.  

 

Traffic Order for amending parking bays 

If the selected location affects in existing parking bay i.e. resident, disabled, paid 
display etc., it is required to apply for traffic management order to amend parking 
bay boundaries and make the existing order aligned with the planned layout.  

 Share the drawing and location information with the Traffic Order officer 

 Prepare and approve Statement of Reason (SoR) to share with the officer  

 Officer will prepare and publish the notice of order in 2 weeks. 

 After publication, 3 weeks are given to resident to raise any objection of 
plan.  

 If there is no objection after 3 weeks, the traffic officer should be informed 
about the outcome to publish notice of approval. 

 If there is objection, prepare a report to justify the decision and installation 
which will be signed by Head of Transport  

 If the decision is to proceed installation, Healthy Street officer should 
inform the residents who raised opposition about the final decision.  

 The traffic officer should be informed about the outcome to prepare 
another notice of order whether approved or not. 

 After the installation, HS officer assess the road marking/signage of the 
bays, contact highway service if any amendment is needed 

The output of the Step 5 is to have published traffic order/ temporary traffic order 
to follow to use for the parking suspension and Record of Decision Report.  

 

Step 6- Approval of Decision  

Approval of the final site locations is delegated to the Director of Environment & 
Operational Services. For each installation batch, Healthy Streets officers will 
produce documentation that illustrate the designs, provides a response to any 
objections raised and offers assurance that the approved process set out in this 
report has been followed. If the Director of Environment & Operational Service is 
content to approve, implementation will take place.  

 

Step 7 – Parking Suspension  

After publishing the traffic order, parking suspension should be followed as a next 
step in order to make the selected location be clear on the day of installation.  

 For parking suspension, contact Parking team to ask for Parking 
Suspension form to fill in. 

Page 17



 

PL 21/077 P 

 Contact Parking officer to arrange parking suspension according to the 
appointed time period of controlled zone.  

 Prepare the information for suspension signs (yellow signs) including 
drawing (template can be found here)  

 The Parking team will prepare and erect yellow signs 

 The signs should be collected when contactor complete the installation. 

The output of Step 7 is to have legal signage on the road to be ready for the 
installation.  

Step 8 – Installation  

Contractor should be informed for the parking suspension in place. On the 
agreed day of the installations, contractor will pursue the scheduled installation 
program to complete the bikehangar delivery.  

The output of the Step 8 is to jobsheets (example found here) obtained from 
contractor which shows the installation location and photos as evidence of 
installation that can then be provided to whoever has funded the project (typically 
TfL). 

 

 

 

Step 9 - Space Allocation  

The space allocation starts after the installation. First allocation applied to the 
people who requested the service and in the waiting list. The approach is first 
come first served. Council review request database fortnightly in order to 
progress space allocation.  

 Extract the information from database who applied for the bikehangar.  

 Send the list of residents appointed a space (name, address, contact 
number, email, bikehangar number) to supplier 

 Send informative email to the residents to notify them about next steps 
(process of payment and key delivery).  

 The information of the resident will be removed after a space is allocated.  

 If there is no other request coming from the same streets, the space can 
be offered to the residents from near streets.  

The output of the process is space allocation list and occupancy report to monitor 
level of occupancy in the bikehangars. 

 

Step 10 – Handover 

On completion of installation, bikehangars will be passed to Parking Services 
who will lead on the ongoing management of installed assets.  

Page 18

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/EC75E56C-1139-4FA2-93A9-E19E3BE4C7F4?tenantId=cc18b91d-1bb2-4d9b-ac76-7a4447488d49&fileType=docx&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement%2FShared%20Documents%2FCycle%20Parking%2F0200%20Project%20Management%2FDelivery%2FLetters%2FTemplate_Parking%20suspension%20for%20Yellow%20Sign.docx&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:20881767278e494eb060deae38a96056@thread.skype&groupId=34902876-f83e-4dda-a391-4e4925064ce6
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/file/C0277AE4-5EF2-4861-9511-1A68F17DD051?tenantId=cc18b91d-1bb2-4d9b-ac76-7a4447488d49&fileType=pdf&objectUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement%2FShared%20Documents%2FCycle%20Parking%2F1000%20Asset%20management%2FBikehangars%2FJobsheets%2FBatch-3%2FLBE-25%20Bikehangars%20Jobsheets.pdf&baseUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fenfield365.sharepoint.com%2Fsites%2FHealthyStreetsProgrammeManagement&serviceName=teams&threadId=19:20881767278e494eb060deae38a96056@thread.skype&groupId=34902876-f83e-4dda-a391-4e4925064ce6


 

PL 21/077 P 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

PL 21/077 P 

 

 
Bikehangar Installation Process 

Steps Tasks W1 W2 W3 W4 W5 W6 W7 W8 W9 W10 W11 W12 W13 W14 W15 W16 

Step 1 Demand Data Review                                  

Draft proposed locations                                   

Inform Cabinet Member                 

Step 2 
 

Site visit                                 

Pre-check the site with 
T&T and Parking team  

                                

Formal drawings                                 

Step 3 
 

Book a slot for 
printing/distribution  

                                

Inform Ward Councillor                                  

Notify residents by letter                                

Gather feedback                                  

Step 4  Secure window for 
installation  

                                

Step 5 
 

Apply for Temporary/ 
Traffic Order 

                                

Traffic Order Process                                 

Step 6 Approval or otherwise by 

the Director of Env & 

Opt.  to proceed 

                

Step 7 Parking suspension                              

Step 8 Installation                             

Step 9 Space Allocation                                  

Step 
10  

Handover to Parking 
Service 

                

P
age 20



 

 

PL 21/077 P 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Until this report is published, even if it is ultimately to be considered in Part 
1, it should not be circulated beyond the Cabinet (excepting officers writing 
and reviewing the paper through this process) or sent externally, and its 
contents should be treated as confidential. 
 

London Borough of Enfield 
[Committee Name] 

  
Meeting Date 

  
  

Subject:                      Award of Children services system (Hosted) Contract 
Cabinet Member:      [                         ] 
Executive Director:  Fay Hammond 
  
Key Decision:           [ 5418] 
  
  
  
Purpose of Report 
  
This report seeks the approval to award the contract and is for the existing 
children’s systems that are being provided by LiquidLogic Limited. 
 
Proposal(s) 
 

1. To award a contract to LiquidLogic Limited for an annual contract value as 
set out in the restricted appendix via a direct call off from the Crown 
Commercial Service (CCS) framework RM6821 Lot 3c: Community Health 
and Social Care for the existing Children services system to be hosted.  

2. To enter a contract with LiquidLogic Limited for an initial term of three (3) 
years with the option to extend for two further terms of one year each.  

 
Reason for Proposal(s) 
  

3. The LiquidLogic system is used to support delivery of Children’s Services 
in the council. While the application is robust, there have been issues with 
slow response times and on occasion the need for the service to use the 
system out of hours (classed as between 6pm and 8am Monday to Friday 
and all-day Saturday and Sunday). 

 
 

4. Enfield’s own hosted environment is in Cloud (Azure) and supported by 
the internal team. The existing application while stable, has both issues 
with response speeds and no dedicated out of hours support.  

 
 

5. By moving the application into LiquidLogic’ s own hosting environment, 
this will enable both the improved response speeds and dedicated out of 
hours support. The increased costs will be offset by removing the 
application from the Azure environment, which will reduce the storage 
required which will enable a reduction in spending on storage.  

 

Page 23 Agenda Item 2



6. The cost of the application remains the same, and there is a very small 
saving on storage costs compared to hosting in Azure which will help fund 
the relatively low out of hours support cost. This is also likely to be offset 
by reduced requirement to pay one off support costs via overtime. 

 
7. In addition, we will take the opportunity to add in annual support packs to 

the contract, rather than the current process for purchasing individually. 
This will provide a reduced cost compared to one off purchases and 
predicted use is based on previous purchases. 

 
8. Overall, the increase in costs per annum will be around £10,000 for a 

quicker service with out of hours support and inclusion of a 15-day service 
pack support annually.  

 
 
Relevance to the Council Plan 
  
All aspects of the Council’s plan are supported by provision of secure, robust and 
flexible Digital Service provision. This enables all service provision. 
  
Background 
  
 

9. The main reason for changing the Hosting is to prevent unnecessary 
system downtime due to instability of the application running on our Azure 
environment. 

 
10.  This is a critical system as it is used for children services and needs to be 

stable and available in line with service requirements. There is a risk if we 
don’t move to the hosting that the system will continue perform less well 
than it could. 

 
11.  To replace an existing application and implement it, migrate to it, and 

decommission, will take 2 to 3 years. This award is to allow enough time 
to look at the market and replace it in 3 years if applicable. The key 
deliverable for this contract is to improve the response time and reliability 
of the current system. 

 
 

12.  The main reasons for recommending the award of this contract are: 
 

 Improved resilience, support and response times  

 Introduction of out of hours support as required by the service users 

 Small cost reduction in storage costs 

 Opportunity to align contract terms and conditions to DS Strategy 

 Time Frame to look at all Children’s and Adult Service Applications 
against the application rationalisation plan 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



Main Considerations for the Council 
  

13.  The Council’s Digital Strategy is to ensure applications are available to       
support service delivery at any time and on any device. By moving this 
application into the supplier’s hosting environment this will ensure that the 
system is available longer and works better. 
 

14.  The proposal in this report is to award a call off contract via a direct award 
to LiquidLogic Limited via Lot 3c of the Crown Commercial Services’ 
Framework: RM3821 Data and Application Solutions (DAS)   
 

15.  The Framework permits contracting authorities to call of via direct award 
to one of the suppliers on the framework. 
The Framework allows direct award call offs where: 

 The requirement is intrinsically linked to a system already within the 
customers organisation. 

 The product is on the Government eMarketplace. 

 Framework Schedule 6 Order Form will need to be signed by both 
parties.  

 
 
Safeguarding Implications 
  
      16. N/A 
  
Public Health Implications 
  
      17. N/A 
  
Equalities Impact of the Proposal  
  
     18.  Equalities impact assessment is not required as we are not changing the      
current system. 
 
  
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  
  
     19.  The key change is that the application will now be hosted in the suppliers’ 
own data centre. The supplier is compliant with UK sustainability and ethical 
standards, which is supported as a requirement of the Crown Commercial 
Services Frameworks.  
  
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
  
     20. The application will continue to work as now which means less stable   
system and no dedicated out of hours critical cover. 
 

Page 25

https://buyers.procserveonline.com/admin/login/auth?marketplaceId=15&locale=en


     21. The council may not achieve the Azure storage saving based on our 
estimated use. 
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is taken 
 
   22. The application hosting does not provide the benefits as expected. This will 

be mitigated by robust contract and supplier monitoring. 
 
   23.  The framework does not require a security guarantee, however the 
council’s contract procedure rule requires one. This will be mitigated by the 
provision of the supplier’s financial report to demonstrate their ability to deliver 
the contract. 
 
  
Legal Implications  
  
   24. The Council has a general power of competence in section 1(1) of  
the Localism Act 2011. This states that a local authority has the power to do 
anything that individuals generally may do provided it is not prohibited by 
legislation and subject to public law principles. There is no express prohibition, 
restriction or limitation contained in a statute against use of the power as 
recommended in this report. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 
further gives a local authority power to do anything (whether or not involving the 
expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of any 
property or rights) which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, 
the discharge of any of its functions. The matters outlined in this report are 
incidental to the functions of the Council’s departments. 
 
Use of a legally compliant framework agreement where the Council is identified 
as a Contracting Authority able to use the framework is permitted under Reg 33 
of Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015).  Additionally, the Council’s 
Constitution, in particular the Contract Procedure Rules (“CPRs”) state that 
Frameworks, where they exist, should be used provided Best Value can be 
demonstrated and managers are required to retain sufficient evidence to 
demonstrate compliance. 
 
Regulation 33(6) PCR 2015 provides that contracts based on frameworks may 
under no circumstances entail substantial modifications to the terms laid down in 
that Framework. Consequently, the terms of the call off contract must be 
consistent with the framework terms.  The call off contract must further be signed 
under seal and be in a form approved by the Director of Law and Governance. 
 
 
The contract award must be in accordance with the process for direct award set 
out in the Framework agreement and the terms of the call off contract must be 
consistent with the framework terms. 
 
Consequently, a direct award can only be made if (i) Best Value can be 
demonstrated; (ii) it is permitted by the rules of that Framework; and (iii) the rules 
of the Framework on direct award are complied with. 
 

Page 26



This decision is a Key Decision and the Key Decision process in the Constitution 
must be complied with prior to award of the award. 
 
The Service Department must ensure that sufficient security is obtained for any 
contract with a value above £1,000,000 in accordance with CPR 7.2. CPR 7.4 
provides that where the supplier cannot provide security, but the Council has no 
acceptable alternative provider or has decided to accept the level of risk, then the 
Executive Director of Resources must approve the financial risk prior to any 
award with the relevant Authority Report setting out the reason why it is proposed 
that the contract should be awarded despite absence of security and what 
measures are to be taken to manage this risk. 
 
[Legal implications provided by Zainab Salim circulated on 11/02/2022] 
  
Procurement Implications 
  
    25. Any procurement must be undertaken in accordance with the 

Councils   Contract Procedure Rules (CPR’s) and the Public Contracts 
Regulations (2015). 

 
The award of the contract, including evidence of authority to award, 
promoting to the Councils Contract Register, and the uploading of executed 
contracts must be undertaken on the London Tenders Portal including 
future management of the contract.  The management of this call off must 
be done via the London Tenders Portal in order to create a contract record. 

 
All awarded projects must be promoted to Contracts Finder to comply with 
the Government’s transparency requirements. 

 
It is expected that this contract be properly managed, and that the LTP used 
to upload contract information, and that it comes to the board in a timely 
manner when renewal is needed, to allow time for a proper market 
consultation and procurement exercise if needed for re-provision.  
 

       The use of the Crown Commercial Services’ Data and Application Solutions    
(DAS) Framework is compliant with using RM3821 (the Framework) Lot 3.  
 
       The Framework allows direct award call offs where: 

 The requirement is intrinsically linked to a system already within the 
customers organisation 

 The product is on the Government eMarketplace 

 Framework Schedule 6 Order Form will need to be signed by both 
parties  

      5-year maximum call-off contract duration is also allowed. 
 
In this instance we meet the framework requirements in that the system is 
intrinsically linked to a system already within the customer organisation. 

Procurement notes that the service is looking for a 3 +1+1 term contract.  This is 
permissible under the terms of the framework. The framework allows for up to a 
5-year term.  Therefore, at the end of this contract, the service will need to carry 
out another procurement if it wishes to continue to use this application.  

Page 27

https://buyers.procserveonline.com/admin/login/auth?marketplaceId=15&locale=en


Procurement Services also recommend a review of the service at 2 years to see 
if the extension is likely to be taken, as they will need to start a new procurement 
at this point if not. 

In line with the council’s Ethical and Sustainable Procurement Policy, the 
framework meets sustainability requirements in that it is a government provided 
framework and is compliant to Government Buying standards. The equipment 
used will be ethically sourced and will be responsibly disposed of at end of life. 
As this is a framework the council is governed by the framework terms and 
conditions, and therefore the ability to negotiate additional social value is limited. 

Given the value and the risk associated with this application should it be 
unavailable.  Digital Services need to have a monitoring and contract 
management schedule in place.  Evidence of contract management must be 
stored in the LTP for audit purposes. 

Provided/updated by Claire Reilly on 8/03/2022 

  
Options Considered 
  
 
     26.  Do nothing. This would not achieve the outcomes required. 
 
     27. To look at alternative applications. There would be insufficient time to 
identify alternatives and implement them before the current contract ends. The 
new contract timeline allows time to look at alternatives before the next contract 
is awarded. 
 
 
 
 
  
Conclusions 
  
    28. The digital services strategy is to ensure services are available anywhere 
and anytime. 
In addition, services will be delivered through the Cloud as default. By moving the 
current application into the cloud this will improve performance, availability and 
out of hours support. 
This also provides digital services with the option to review the market during the 
contract lifetime. 
 
 
 
   
Report Author:        
 
Martin Sanders 
Head of Service Management and Governance – Digital Services 
[martin.sanders@enfield.gov.uk] 
[0208 132 0061] 

Page 28



  
Date of report:  
  
Appendices 
 Restricted Annex (Confidential Appendix) 
  
Background Papers 
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report: 

 
None 
 
 
 
 
 

29.  Restricted Annex (Confidential Appendix)– Not for Publication – 

The following items are not for publication as they relate to the following category 
of exempt information as specified under paragraph 3, Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972, namely: “Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information). 

This report seeks approval to award a 3-year contract plus 1 year plus 1 
year extension for the Children services system. 

The current system has been running in Enfield since 2008 and the current 
contract will expire on 31st March 2022. 
 

Having been unable to address above mentioned issues internally, we 
have asked the supplier to come up with a solution to address these 
issues, and they have proposed that they take over the hosting of the 
system and can provide out of hours support.  

 

To put this into place, this would require a move to a 3-year contract (with 1 plus 
1 extensions), replacing the existing annual contract which is due to end in March 
2022. This contract would be terminated before awarding the new contract to 
avoid dual running costs. 
 

 

Breakdown of costs 
 
 
 

Current 
arrangement Provider  Annual Cost 

Liquid Logic 
application LiquidLogic  £         109,026  

Azure Storage in Civica  £         110,000 

Page 29



the cloud 

Out of Hours 

Within DS via 
overtime @ £23.12ph 
(400 hours pa 
including on call every 
day and fixing 
between 6 to 8 out of 
hours calls per year)  £             9,248 

Total     £         228,274 

 

New arrangement Provider Annual Cost 

Liquid Logic 
application LiquidLogic  £           99,026 

Storage hosting LiquidLogic  £         106,600 

Out of Hours LiquidLogic  £           10,000 

Annual Service 
Support pack LiquidLogic £            13,950 

Total Annual cost    £         229,576 

One/off cost  LiquidLogic  £           37,000 

 
The new contract is a direct award to LiquidLogic at a value of up to £1,184,878 
for 3 years with 1 year + 1 year extension options. This is made up of an annual 
cost for 5 years (3 plus 1 plus 1) of £229,576 totalling £1,147,880 plus a one off 
cost of £37,000.  
 
RPI% will be added to the total amount annually from year 2 onwards.  Please 
note any reimbursable expenses to the supplier which if happens, we will seek 
separate approval for this spend. 
 
The payment is annually in advance. 
 

The removal of the application from the Azure Cloud is permitted under the 
existing Civica/Microsoft contract, since this is based on a minimum spend and 
remaining costs billed by the month in arrears. 
 
Breakdown of one-off cost as Implementation cost: 
 

Item Cost 

Hosting setup cost  £     12,000 

Database move to hosting environment £     22,000 

Networking setup cost £       3,000 

Total One-Off Costs £     37,000 

 

Below is the breakdown of the total cost for each year: 

Module 
- Support & 
Maintenance  

Year 1   Year 2    Year 3  

Year 4 
(This is +1 
contract 
extension) 

Year 5  
(This is 
2nd + 1 
contract 
extension) 

Page 30



Children’s 
Delegation 
Portal 

£5,522 £5,522 £5,522 £5,522 £5,522 

Legal 
Workspace 

£1,186 
£1,186 £1,186 £1,186 £1,186 

CSE 
Workspace 

£1,186 £1,186 £1,186 £1,186 £1,186 

Allegations 
Workspace 

£1,187 £1,187 £1,187 £1,187 £1,187 

EHM £15,132 £15,132 £15,132 £15,132 £15,132 

Adoptions £7,538 £7,538 £7,538 £7,538 £7,538 

Wisdom 
Integration 

£4,776 £4,776 £4,776 £4,776 £4,776 

Wisdom 
Integration 
Enhancements 

£2,320 £2,320 £2,320 £2,320 £2,320 

LCS  £28,652 £28,652 £28,652 £28,652 £28,652 

BO Universe £7,545 £7,545 £7,545 £7,545 £7,545 

LCS 
Integration 

£3,773 £3,773 £3,773 £3,773 £3,773 

ETS £6,995 £6,995 £6,995 £6,995 £6,995 

Troubled 
Families 
Workspace 

£903 £903 £903 £903 £903 

Number 
Loader 

£913 £913 £913 £913 £913 

Children’s 
Portal 

£11,398 £11,398 £11,398 £11,398 £11,398 

Out of hours 
Service 

£10,000 £10,000 £10,000 £10,000 £10,000 

15 Days 
annual support 
pack 

£13,950 £13,950 £13,950 £13,950 £13,950 

Annual hosting 
cost including 
separation of 
test and live 
environments 

£83,200 £83,200 £83,200 £83,200 £83,200 

Annual 
Networking 
Dual Line 
Costs 

£23,400 £23,400 £23,400 £23,400 £23,400 

Total Annual 
Cost  

£229,576 £229,576 £229,576 £229,576 £229,576 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



Financial Implications  
  
    30.  The cost of the implementation is £37,000 which is a one-off cost and will 
be managed within the Digital services contracts budget (FG0227). The annual 
cost of £219,026 for LiquidLogic is expected to increase by £10,000 and also will 
need to be absorbed within the Digital services contracts budget. 
The increased annual cost includes an out of hours provision in the contract as 
well as annual service support pack (15 days). 
The additional cost of RPI will be funded corporately. 
 
Provided by Omar Syed on 11/02/2022- 23/02/2022 
 
Legal Implications 
 
 
   31. The value of the contract is above the applicable procurement threshold 
(£213,477 inclusive of VAT) which means that contract award is caught by the 
Public Contract Regulations 2015 (‘PCR’) and the full rigours of Part 2 of the 
PCR will apply. This means carrying out a competition unless it is a call off via 
direct award in accordance with the terms of a valid framework or the relevant 
exemption below applies.   
 
To call off from a framework via direct award (without carrying out a mini 
competition) as recommended in this report, a contracting authority must use the 
terms of the framework including the prices submitted by the supplier under the 
framework. To mitigate the risk of challenge, it is advised that the client 
department should use the prices on the framework to calculate the annual 
contract price in this report. Failing that, the award is at risk of challenge on the 
grounds that it is a direct award without competition and an extension of the term 
of a current contract with the supplier. If challenged, the Council will have a 
defence if it can demonstrate that the award falls within the exemption under 
regulation 32 PCR.  
 
Regulation 32 provides that a contract can be directly awarded where: 
2(a) no tenders, no suitable tenders, no requests to participate or no suitable 
requests to participate have been submitted in response to an open procedure or 
a restricted procedure, provided that the initial conditions of the contract are not 
substantially altered and that a report is sent to the Cabinet Office where it so 
requests. 
(b) the works, supplies or services can be supplied only by a particular economic 
operator for any of the following reasons: 
(i) the aim of the procurement is the creation or acquisition of a unique work of art 
or artistic performance, 
 (ii) competition is absent for technical reasons, 
 (iii) the protection of exclusive rights, including intellectual property rights, 
 but only, in the case of paragraphs (ii) and (iii), where no reasonable 
alternative or substitute exists, and the absence of competition is not the result of 
an artificial narrowing down of the parameters of the procurement.   
 
The circumstances of the award of this contract does not fit into any of the PCR 
32 exemptions listed above (which case law has shown to be narrowly construed 
by the Courts). Accordingly, if the framework prices are not used to calculate the 

Page 32



contract price and award the contract, the Council will not be awarding the 
contract in accordance with the terms of the framework and must be mindful of 
the procurement risks.   
 

 
 
Legal Implication provided by Zainab Salim on 11/02/2022 
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Bike Hangars Installation Process
	2 Award of Children services system (Hosted) Contract

